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FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT AND RELIANCE UPON JURY DEMAND

NOW COME Plaintiffs, STEVEN K. SOUDERS and THERESA M. VAUGHN,

SSIONAL CORPORATION p ATTORN

“@SE

o-Personal Representatives of the ESTATE OF TIMOTHY JOE SOUDERS, Deceased, by and

QEX « AP

hrough their attorneys, FIEGER, FIEGER, KENNEY, JOHNSON & GIROUX, and for their
omplaint against the above-named Defendants, state as follows:

1. Plaintiffs Steven K. Souders and Theresa M. Vaughn are the Co-Personal
Representatives of the Estate of Timothy Joe Souders, deceased, and at all times relevant were

2
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Case 2:06-cv-14353-BAF-DAS  Document 52 Filed 06/08/2007 Page 3 of 29

;itizens of the State of Michigan. The decedent, Timothy Joe Souders, at all times relevant was

(248) @55-5 148

=FAX

incarcerated at the Southern Michigan Correctional Facility at J ackson (Jackson Prison) located
n the County of Jackson, State of Michigan.

2. The Michigan Department of Corrections is a govei’nmental agency of the

.'U TELEPHONE (248)653 5555

efendant State of Michigan organized to carry out state functions and utilized pursuant to law

and was the employer of several of the following Defendants.

\gS()75‘246

3. The Defendant Pat Caruso, based upon information and belief, is a resident of the

ounty of Jackson, State of Michigan and was at all time relevant employed by the State of

. SOI(H“j-IFIELD. MICHIGAR

z

ichigan as the Director of the Michigan Department of Corrections (MDOC).
4. Defendant Warden S.L. Burt, based upon information and belief; is a resident of

he County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State of

19308-WEST TEN MILE R

-

ichigan as the warden at Jackson Prison.
5. Defendant Deputy Warden John Ocweija, based upon information and belief, is
resident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed

y the State of Michigan as the deputy warden at Jackson Prison.

N « ATTORNEYS ARP COUNSELORS AT

6. Defendant Lt. Cleveland Blunt, based upon information and belief, is a resident
f'the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State

f Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

FESPIONAL QERPORATIO

7. Defendant Lt. Paul Allen, based upon information and belief, is a resident of the

WIROUX « APROI

L ounty of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State of

Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

FIEGER, FIEGER. KENNEY, .glNSOI\
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8. Defendant Lt. Jeremy Bush, based upon information and belief; is a resident of the

55 (F)}X (248) 355-5148

ounty of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevan’t- émployed by the State of

)255

Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

9. Defendant Lt. Tracy McGuirt, based upon information and belief, is a resident of

75-2463—+ TELEPHONE (248

he County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State of

2

ichigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.
10.  Defendant Lt. Charles Morchison, based upon information and belief, is a resident

f'the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State

R@SD + SOWRHFIELD, MICHIGAN

f Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.
11. Defendant Robert Shroads, based upon information and belief, is a resident of the

ounty of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State of

]9?20’&’ EST TEN MILE

0

ichigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.
12. Defendant Lt. George Cornell, based upon information and belief, is a resident of

he County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State of

ANB COUNSELORS AT It

g\!EYS

ichigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

13. Defendant Lt. Joseph Rand, based upon information and belief, is a resident of the

(pﬁPORATION * ATT

ounty of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State of

ichigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

FEgONAL

14.  Defendant Joseph Dufty, M.S.W., based upon information and belief, is a resident

f'the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State

JQHNSON &$3IROUX « A PROI

f Michigan Department of Community Health as a social worker at Jackson Prison.

FIEGER. FIEGER. KENNEY,
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15.  Defendant Capt. Sherman B. Campbell, based upon information and belief, is a

fesident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by

56,5555 "FAX (248) 355-5148

he State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.
16. Defendant Capt. Francine Powell, based upon information and belief, is a resident

f'the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State

@p075-2463¢» TELEPHONE (248)

f Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.
17. Defendant Allan A. Small, based upon information and belief, is a resident of the

ounty of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State of

. SOI{'ﬂjHELD. MICHIGAN

B

ichigan as a psychologist at Jackson Prison.
18.  Defendant Betty Glasper, R.N., based upon information and belief, is a resident
f the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State
f Michigan as a registered nurse at Jackson Prison.
19. Defendant Angela Brown, R.N., based upon information and belief, is a resident
f the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State

f Michigan as a registered nurse at Jackson Prison.

* ATT@BNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT L@V « 1939QWEST TEN MILE R¢

20.  Defendant R.N. Gail Hall, based upon information and belief, is a resident of the

CORPORATION

ounty of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State of
ichigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

21.  Defendant R.N. Hunt, based upon information and belief, is a resident of the
ounty of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State of

ichigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

FIEGER. FIEGER. KENNEY. JGENSON &(CYROUX + A PROFESSIONAL
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22.  Defendant Physician Assistant Ray Mooney Defendant, based upon information

EAX (248) 355-5148

and belief, is a resident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan,.,“

d was at all times relevant

5555

mployed by the State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.
23. Defendant Psychologist Tolsma, based upon information and belief, is a resident

f the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State

N@075-2463y TELEPHONE (248) 55

f Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

24, Defendant Paul J. Fatu, M.D., based upon information and belief, is a resident of

L@FIELD, MICHIGA

¢ County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by CMS as a

hysician at Jackson Prison.

N MILE RGAD + SO

25. Defendant Charles D. Boltjes, R.N., based upon information and belief, is a

39 WEST TE

esident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by

@’-]9

e State of Michigan as a registered nurse at Jackson Prison.
26. Defendant William Amsdiel, a corrections officer, based upon information and

elief, is a resident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant

@RNEYS ANB*COUNSELORS AT [

mployed by the State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

27. Defendant Allen Bradshaw, a corrections officer, based upon information and
elief, is a resident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant
mployed by the State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

28.  Defendant Christopher Davis, a corrections officer, based upon information and

&$IROUX + A PROFEGSIONAL QORPORATION » ATTX

elief, is a resident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant

JOHNSON

mployed by the State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

FIEGER. FIEGER. KENNEY.
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29. Defendant Michael Densmore, a corrections officer, based upon information and

HAX (248) 355-5148

belief, is a resident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant

v

mployed by the State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

30. Defendant Marcus Ellsworth, a corrections officer, based upon information and

TELEPHONE (248) @§5-3555

(gl

elief, is a resident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant

mployed by the State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

NGBR075-246

31. Defendant Larkin, a corrections officer, based upon information and belief, is a

BEHFIELD. MICHIGA

esident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed by
e State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

32. Defendant L. McDaniel, a corrections officer, based upon information and belief,

WEST TEN MILE R(gp * SO

60

s aresident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed

3

y the State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

33. Defendant Earnest Redman, a corrections officer, based upon information and

R COUNSELORS AT IAW + 19

elief, is a resident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant

mployed by the State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

« ATTERNEYS A

34, Defendant Chad Smith, a corrections officer, based upon information and belief,

(&RPORATION

aresident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed

y the State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

FESMONAL

35. Defendant B. Walter, a corrections officer, based upon information and belief, is

resident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed

ISHNSON SGIROUX » A PRO

oy the State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

FIEGER. FIEGER. KENNEY.
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36. Defendant Shawn White, a corrections officer, based upon information and belief,

(248) 355-5148

wEAX

s aresident of the County of Jackson, State of Michigan, and was at all times relevant employed

)@§5-5555

y the State of Michigan as a corrections officer at Jackson Prison.

37.  Defendant Ruth Shafer, an employee of the Michigan Department of Community

6m TELEPHONE (248

ealth, based upon information and belief, is a resident of the County of Jackson, State of

1\207524

ichigan, and was at all times relevant employed by the State of Michigan as a corrections officer

MICHIGA

at Jackson Prison.
38.  The above-named Defendants were employees, agents and/or representatives of

ackson Prison and/or the Department of Corrections and/or the State of Michigan and, in the

ourse and scope of their employment, agency or representation of said department and/or

€6 WEST Tigly MILE R@AD « SOUTHFIELD.

ntities, performed duties and responsibilities as correctional facility persons acting pursuant to

AW - 193

nd under color of state law.
39.  The Defendant Correctional Medical Services, Inc., (CMS), is a foreign

orporation licensed in the State of Missouri and is authorized to do business in the State of

YS AP COUNSELORS AT

ichigan. The Defendant CMS contracted with the Michigan Department of Corrections to

. A

rovide medical care to inmates by providing prison doctors and other healthcare workers to treat

RPORAHEN

mates at Jackson Prison.

=

40.  The acts set forth in this Complaint arise under Section 1 of the Civil Rights Act

f1871, 17 stat. 13,42 U.S.C. §1983, and the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United

&/§IROUX @ A PROFESSIONAL

tates Constitution.
41.  The amount in controversy exceeds SEVENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS

$75,000.00), exclusive of interest, costs and fees.

FIEGER. FIEGER ACENNEY, JOHNSON
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COMMON ALLEGATIONS

42.  Plaintiff hereby repeats and realleges the allegations contamedm paragraphs 1

5555 » FAX (248) 355-5148

8565,

through 41 above as though more fully set forth herein.
43, On or about August 2, 2006, the decedent Timothy Joe Souders, age 21, was a
risoner at Jackson Prison.

44.  Prior to August 2, 2006, the deceased, while confined in the prison, was

RACHIGAN 48075-2468 TELEPHONE (248)

rescribed medications to treat certain medical conditions, including depression, psychosis and

ypertension.

45, On August 2, 2006, officials at Jackson Prison issued a heat alert indicating that

MILE ROAD « SOUBMFIELD.

eather conditions would reach temperatures that placed all prisoners at risk, especially those

WG WEST TERE

orisoners who were taking certain medications and who were suffering certain medical
onditions, as was the deceased.

46.  The medical conditions described above and the medication previously described

NP COUNSELORS AT LegW * 19.

nd administered at some time in the past made Timothy Joe Souders a high risk for medical

omplications because of the heat.

« ATT@BNEYS Al

47.  On August 2, 2006, Timothy Joe Souders was unjustly and illegally placed in an

CgQPORATION

olation cell for attempting to alleviate symptoms he was experiencing because of the extreme
eat by taking a shower.

48. When Timothy Joe Souders was placed in isolation, he was brutally and

ROUX » A PROFESSIONAL

fnhumanely tied and/or restrained with four-point restraints to a table or bed for no legitimate

ason by the Defendants in an isolation cell where he had no access to food or water in

Y. Jg{NSON

KENNE

xtremely hot conditions.

FIEGER. FIEGER
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#

49.  The Defendants Warden Burt and Deputy Warden Ocweija knew of the inhumane

anner in which Timothy Joe Souders was restrained. Furthermore, they were responsible for

5-5555 gAX (248) 355-5148

3

the policies and procedures that existed at the prison which caused and/or permitted the conduct

RONE (248)

f the other named Defendants.

50.  The heat index in the cell where the deceased, Timothy Joe Souders, was

N-48075-2463 * TELEP

estrained reached at least 106 degrees at times from August 2, 2006, until August 6, 2006, with

HICHIGA

extremely high humidity.

51.  Timothy Joe Souders was kept inhumanely restrained in the isolation cell for at

east four days until he was discovered dead in the cell on August 6, 2006, by Michigan

MILE R@AD ¢ SOUTHFIELD.

.

epartment of Corrections officers.
52.  While restrained inhumanely for no justifiable reason from August 2, 2006, until

e died on August 6, 2006, Timothy Joe Souders never received psychiatric care from a

SE4.0RS AT AW+ 19390 WESTT]

hysician.
53. While restrained inhumanely for no justifiable reason from August 2, 2006, until

e died on August 6, 2006, Timothy Joe Souders was never provided with basic necessities and

+ ATTERNEYS AND COUNI

as required to lay naked in urine and feces for most of the time he was restrained.

QN

54, On August 2, 2006, and on other occasions, Defendant Joseph Duffy, a social

F%GIONAL CORPORAT!

orker, observed Timothy Joe Souders in restraints and he knew using the restraints was against

z\ PRO

DOC policies, was unnecessary, contraindicated and was cruel and only intended to punish.

e observed Timothy Joe Souders exhibiting symptoms consistent with his earlier mania.

FIEGER. FIEGER, KENNEY, JOHNSON K:EIROUX

10
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55. On August 2, 2006, the Defendant Deputy Warden Ocweija approved placing the
eceased in restraints for punishment and furthermore on August 3, 2006, ordered that the
deceased be restrained for an additional 72 hours.

56. On August 2, 2006, the Defendant Lt. Paul Allen was aware the deceased was

TELEPHONE (248)é_§ -5553 @X (248) 355-5148

W)75~24()’d

placed in restraints and was aware for several days thereafter that he was restrained to punish him.
t. Allen did not insure that the deceased received adequate Water; medical care or attention or
cause to have his condition monitored.

57.  Onluly 31, 2006 the Defendant Lt. Charles Murchison obtained authorization to
lace the Defendant in restraints and have him tied to a hard unforgiving surface in order to

punish him knowing that the prison was on a heat alert and furthermore he was aware the

3p8 WEST Ty MILE R@AD » SOUTHFIELD. MICHIGA!

eceased was restrained for several days thereafter.

58. On August 2, 2006, and on other occasions, Defendant Angela Brown, R.N.,

EHORS AT LAW « 19

gxamined Timothy Joe Souders, noting that he was in restraints, and knew or should have known

g_COUI\S

at using the restraints was against MDOC policies, was unnecessary, contraindicated and was

ruel and only intended to punish. She observed Timothy Joe Souders exhibiting symptoms

+ ATT@RNEYS A

onsistent with his earlier mania.

eN

59.  On August 3, 2006, Defendant Dr. Fatu observed Timothy Joe Souders in

FBSSTONAL CORPORAT!

estraints and observed him coughing and gagging and observed him respond inappropriately to

uestions posed to him. Dr. Fatuknew or should have known that using the restraints was against

glROUm APROI

DOC policies, was unnecessary, contraindicated and was cruel and only intended to punish.
e observed Timothy Joe Souders exhibiting symptoms consistent with his earlier mania.

60.  On August 3, 2006, Defendant Deputy Warden Ocweija caused officers to replace

FIEGER. FIEGER, KENNEY, ENSON

11
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#56-5148

the soft restraints used on Timothy Joe Souders with hard, top-of- th estraints. He knew that

sing these types of restraints was against MDOC policies, was unnecessary, contraindicated and

gﬁ -5555 ﬁ\X (248)

was cruel and only intended to punish. He observed Timothy Joe Souders exhibiting symptoms
onsistent with his earlier mania.
61.  On August 2, 2006, the Defendant Joe Duffy observed the deceased and noticed

drastic change in his behavior and although he may have recommended a transfer so he could

MICHIGANB075-2463 « TELEPHENE (248)

be evaluated on an emergent basis, did not insure the transfer occurred and furthermore ignored
is condition on following days.
62. On August 3, 2006 and August 4, 2006, the Defendant Dr. Patel observed the

eceased and was aware of his dire condition but did not insure that the prisoner was taken out

TN MILE ROAD + SOUSHFIELD,

90 WEST

f restraints or provided medical care he needed.
63. On August 3, 2006, the Defendant Ruth Shafer, a secretary for the CSP program

as in charge of transferring prisoners, in particular the deceased, to obtain medical care. Even

N COUNS%ORS ATLAW « 193

hough advised by Dr. Patel to do so she did not insure that the transfer occurred.

64.  From the time that the deceased was placed in segregation on August 2, 2006, the
efendant Nurse Chuck Boltjes was aware of the deceased’s declining medical condition. He
as aware that while the deceased was in general population he had not taken his medication that
as prescribed and he was aware the deceased was not seen by a medical doctor or psychologist
n the few days prior to his death.

65. The Defendant Joseph Duffy saw and examined the deceased on August 3 and

NSON & GIROUX »=A PROFE%]ONAL CERPORATI@ * ATTORNEYS A

&

as aware that he was in a manic state and that he was not taking medications for periods of time

yefore being taken to segregation, but he did not insure that he was transferred from segregation

FIEGER, FIEGER, KENNEY, I

12
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——

) &%6-5148

to obtain proper medical care or do anything to insure the inhumane restraints were removed.
66. The Defendant Joseph Duffy was aware of the grave medical condition of the

deceased and did not insure that he was transferred from segregation on either August 2,3 or 4

HONE (248) 333-5555 « FAX (248

£ 2006 to obtain proper medical care or do anything to insure the inhumane restraints were
emoved.

67.  OnAugust4, 5 and 6, the Defendant Lt. Wendy Powell failed to provide or obtain

CHIGAN 48075-2463=¢ TELEP!

=

nedical care for the deceased or insure he was removed from the restraints even though she knew
f his grave medical condition and could have done so in her supervisory position.

68.  The Defendant Lt. Paul Allen failed to provide or obtain medical care for the

eceased or insure he was removed from the restraints even though he knew of his grave medical

TRNMILE ROAD » SOWSHFIELD,

ondition and would have done so in his supervisory position.

69.  The Defendant Lt. Charles Murchison failed to provide or obtain medical care for

RS AT LAW + 193¢ WEST

e deceased or insure he was removed from the restraints even though he knew of his grave

edical condition and could have done so in his supervisory position.

70.  On August 6, 2006, the Defendant Charles Murchison was directed to release the

ON « ATTORNEYS Ag) COUNS%)

eceased from restraints and was intimately aware of the decedent’s medical condition and he

bserved the deceased unable to stand and in fact watched him fall face first on the floor of his

FESSIONAL QORPORAT!

a
N
=

71.  Throughout the time the deceased was in segregation and restrained the Defendant

@IROUX « APROI

harles Muchison observed the deceased urinate and defecate on himself because of his medical

ondition.

FIEGER, FIEGER. KENNEY. JOHNSON

13
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#

72.  On August 6, 2006, the Defendant Charles Murchison observed the deceased

X (248) 355-5148

acting as if he was drugged and unable to speak, and was aware he was in dire need of immediate

edical condition to save his life.

iéé 5555

73.  On August 5 and 6, 2006, the Defendant Lt. Jeremy Bush failed to provide or
btain medical care for the deceased or insure he was removed from the restraints even though

e knew of his grave medical condition and could have done so in his supervisory position.

74.  On August 5, 2006, the Defendant Lt. Tracy McGuirt failed to provide or obtain

FIELD, MICHIGAN4$875-2463¢y TELEPHONE (248)

edical care for the deceased or insure the was removed from the restraints even though he knew

Q8D * Sougt

f his grave medical condition and could have done so in his supervisory position.

75. On August 5, 2006, the Defendant Lt. Cleveland Blunt failed to provide or obtain
edical care for the deceased or insure the was removed from the restraints even though he knew
f his grave medical condition and could have done so in his supervisory position.

76. On August 6, 2006, the Defendant Sgt. George Cornell failed to provide or obtain

bg COUNSELORS AT LW + l‘)}‘éWEST TEN MILE Ri

edical care for the deceased or insure the was removed from the restraints even though he knew

f his grave medical condition and could have done so in his supervisory position.

« ATT@BNEYS A

77.  On August 6, 2006, the Defendant Sgt. Rand failed to provide or obtain medical

CORPORATION

are for the deceased or insure the was removed from the restraints even though he knew of his

rave medical condition and could have done so in his supervisory position.

FERSIONAL

78.  On August 6, 2006, the Defendant Sgt. Joseph Rand also was present when the

%IROUX ¢ APROI

efendant Nurse Boltjes had difficulty obtaining a pulse and blood pressure of the deceased and

SHNSON

e was aware that he was disoriented and in need of medical attention but he did not provide or

KENNEY, J

btain medical care even though he knew of his grave medical condition and could have done so

14

FIEGER. FIEGER
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) 335-5148

in his supervisory position.

79. On August 5 and 6, 2006, the Defendant Marcus Ellsworth obser\}ed the deceased

#55-5555 « FAX (248

n dire need of medical attention but he did not provide or obtain medical care for him.
80. On August 5 and 6, 2006, the Defendant Officer Allen Bradshaw observed the
eceased in dire need of medical attention but he did not provide or obtain medical care for him.

81. On August 5 and 6, 2006, the Defendant Officer Christopher Davis observed the

MCHIGAN 48075-2463¢y , TELEPHONE (248)

eceased in dire need of medical attention but he did not provide or obtain medical care for him.

82. On August 5 and 6, 2006, the Defendant Officer Bill Amsdell observed the
eceased in dire need of medical attention but he did not provide or obtain medical care for him.

83. On August 5 and 6, 2006, the Defendant Officer Shawn White observed the

YHWEST TEN MILE RQAD « SOUTHFIELD

eceased in dire need of medical attention but he did not provide or obtain medical care for him.
84.  Defendant Lt. Blunt observed Timothy Joe Souders restrained on his bed and

rdered that he be kept restrained, ignoring his medical condition and the inhumane conditions

SEEORS AT LAW « 193

hich existed.

Ig COUN

85. On August 4, 2006, Defendant Joseph Duffy again observed Timothy Joe Souders

ON * ATTORNEYS A

estrained and knew or should have known that using the restraints was against MDOC policies,

as unnecessary, contraindicated and was cruel and only intended to punish. He observed

CQQPORATI

imothy Joe Souders exhibiting symptoms consistent with his earlier mania.

FESSJONAL

86. On August 4, 2006, Defendant Capt. Campbell observed Timothy Joe Souders

&<GIROUX + APRO

estrained and knew that using the restraints was against MDOC policies, was unnecessary,

JEHNSON

ontraindicated and was cruel and only intended to punish. He observed Timothy Joe Souders

KGENNEY

xhibiting symptoms consistent with his earlier mania.

FIEGER. FIEGER
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87. On August 5, 2006, it was apparent to the Defendants that Timothy Joe Souders

5 544)( (248) 355-5148 ;F

had open sores and wounds on his body caused from urine which he was forced to lie in because

he was restrained on his bed and also suffering from the effects of the intense heat and his mental

(248) g55-555

1lness.

EPHONE

88. On August 6, 2006, Timothy Joe Souders was transferred to another cell from the

ell he was in and a belly chain was added to restrain him.

Neg075-2463 » TEL

89. On August 6, 2006, Defendant Allan Small, a psychologist, observed Timothy Joe
ouders. He noted that Mr. Souders was urinating on himself and that he had sores on his body.
90. On August 6, 2006, Defendant Charles D. Boltjes, R.N., observed Timothy Joe

ouders. He observed him fall to the floor and attempt to drink water from the toilet in the cell

TRYMILE ROAD + SOWHFIELD, MICHIGA

e was confined to. He later observed him unresponsive in his cell and discovered him dead. He

L§W * 1939 WEST

ew the deceased was in dire need of medical attention but he did not provide or obtain medical
are for him.
91.  Duringthis period of time, the Defendant Correctional Medical Services employed

ersons who knew that using the restraints was against MDOC policies, was unnecessary,

TEERNEYS AND COUNSKHORS AT

ATIBN + A

ontraindicated and was cruel and only intended to punish and that the Defendant was in dire
eed of medical attention but he did not provide or obtain medical care for him.

92.  Atsome time between August 2, 2006, and the time Timothy Joe Souders died on

PROFESSIONAL G8RPOR

v

ugust 6, 2006, a Michigan Department of Corrections employee recognized the urgent situation

EaSSIROUX

nd attempted to obtain medical care for Mr. Souders at the Huron Valley Center in Ypsilanti,

gNSON

ichigan, but Mr. Souders was never taken to that facility, although he was urgently in need of

edical care.

gENNEY‘ L
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93. While deteriorating before he died, decedent Timothy Joe Souders suffered heat

* (TAX (248) 355-5148

edema, heat syncope, heat cramps, profuse sweating and other obvious signs and symptoms of
dehydration and/or other serious medical conditions, all of which were ignored by the Defendants.

94. At all times relevant, the Defendants and other Michigan Department of

hTELEPHONE (248) @ 5555

Corrections employees discussed the fact that decedent Timothy Joe Souders was becoming more

nd more unstable physically and mentally.

CHIGANGE8075-246

95.  From the period beginning with his confinement in the isolation cell and/or at all

WERHFIELD. Ml

imes relevant, decedent Timothy Joe Souders was not referred to and/or seen during a medical

xamination, despite a change in his condition and a change in his ability to properly nourish

@D * SO

imself.

96.  During the same period of time, decedent Timothy Joe Souders exhibited episodes

¢ 19390 WEST TEﬁ-MILE R

f profuse sweating and illness, including mental illness.

LW

97.  Decedent Timothy Joe Souders experienced and clearly exhibited dizziness,

sveakness, malaise, fatigue, nausea, vomiting, flushed or red skin, sunken eyes and a lethargic

QRNEYS A’? COUNSELORS AT

and/or apathetic mental status.

98.  While decedent exhibited the signs and symptoms of a serious medical condition

GRRPORATION = ATT

nd continued to deteriorate physically and mentally, Defendants failed to obtain medical

eatment for decedent, failed to refer the decedent for an interpersonal, face-to-face mental health

FESSIONAL

xamination and failed to treat and/or help decedent, although they all had an opportunity to do

SSIROUX €A PROI

e

99.  During the time decedent was forced to endure excessively hot temperatures, he

wvas known to be on prescription medications, including, but not limited to, Lithium, Zoloft,

FIEGER. FIEGER. %NNEY. JOHNSON
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L evothyroxine, Gemfibrozil, Seroquel and Hydrochlorothiazide, which caused him to suffer

é‘)X (248)E5§ -5148

rther dehydration and reaction to the heat for which none of the Defendants did anything to help
or provide for electrolyte replacement or fluid intake or salt intake or re-hydration or reduction
f core temperature.

100.  The decedent Timothy Joe Souders was seen to be confused, combative, lethargic,

ncoherent, diaphoretic, nauseous, overheated and with sunken eyes, all of which clearly meant

&CHIGAN-&SKWSQ%B + TELEPRENE (248) 8§5-5555

decedent was experiencing a medical emergency which needed to be addressed and/or treated

OWEMFIELD,

mmediately.

g 101.  During this period, the Defendants ignored and/or disregarded and/or callously
gefrained from addressing or treating decedent’s serious medical condition.
§ 102.  Atall timesrelevant, the Defendants completely failed to obtain the necessary help
?nd/or treatment for the decedent.
g 103. Atalltimesrelevant, the decedent could have been and should have been provided
?mth the treatment listed above and decedent’s life could have been and should have been

reserved.
COUNT1

VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. §1983 AND THE
EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS OF THE
UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION BY THE INDIVIDUAL DEFENDANTS
EXCLUDING WARDEN BURT AND DIRECTOR PAT CARUSO

104. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through

03 of Plaintiffs” Complaint as though more fully set forth herein.

18
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105. As a citizen of the United States and a resident of Jackson Prison located in the

X (248) 355-5148

tate of Michigan, decedent Timothy Joe Souders was entitled to ‘all rights, privileges and

335-5555

immunities accorded to all incarcerated citizens of the State of Michi gan and of the United States.

106.  Atall times relevant, the individual Defendants were acting within the course and

Y2 TELEPHONE (248)

cope of their employment and/or contractual relationship with the State of Michigan and the

epartment of Corrections and/or Jackson Prison and were acting under color of state law with

CHICAI\@WS-Z%

he authority granted to them as corrections officers or correctional healthcare providers and/or

HFIELD, &

g
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107. At all times relevant, pursuant to the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments of the

IE?:-MILE ROAD + SO

nited States Constitution, decedent had a right to be free from cruel and unusual punishment
h1le incarcerated and under the custody and control of the State of Michigan at the Jackson

rison facility.

NSELORS ATIL-@V « 193 % ESTT

108. Atall timesrelevant, decedent had a right to adequate and sufficient medical care

¥P COU

nd/or treatment such that his life would be preserved and he at all times would be free from

eedless, unjustified and preventable pain, suffering, and deterioration of his health and well-

* ATTERNEYS A

«Q

-

=
agQ

109. At all times relevant while the deceased was housed in segregation from August

FRSIONAL CORPORATIGN

, 2006 until August 6, 2006, Defendants acted with malice, recklessness and/or deliberate
ndifference, kept the decedent housed or located in a cell having excessively hot temperatures,

ithout adequate fluids and under the influence of harmful medications, and deprived him of

N é‘é;lROUX =t A PROI

JEHINSO

iecessary and needed medical care, which they knew he was in need of, all of which combined

n whole or in part to cause pain, suffering, deterioration of health and ultimately death of the

FIEGER, FIEGER. g:‘NNEY
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8)@55-5148

ecedent, all of which took place over the course of several days.
110. The decedent’s health and well-being began to deteriorate as a result of the

xcessive heat, inadequate fluids and harmful medications the decedent was forced to endure.

248)@p5-5555 » FAX (24

HS@IE(

he deterioration began in the form of heat edema, syncope, profuse sweating, dizziness,

eakness, malaise, fatigue, nausea, confusion and apathy, all of which should have been and were

g TELEP!

N8075-246

pparent and/or obvious to the causal observer.

111. At and before the time of decedent’s death which occurred on August 6, 2006,

EIHFIELD, MICHIGA

ecedent was experiencing a medical emergency. The medical emergency manifested itself in

GAD + SO

he form of confusion, diminished mental capacity, diminished cognition, lethargy, apathy,

B MILE R

unken eyes, diaphoresis, vomiting, fatigue, malaise, weakness, dizziness and unusual behavior.
he Defendants ignored this medical emergency.

112.  During the time that decedent’s health continued to deteriorate, the various

RS AT LAW « 1932QiWEST n

P

efendants, pursuant to the Eighth Amendment, were required to provide and/or obtain adequate

g) COUN

edical care for the decedent, including, but not limited to, electrolyte replacement, increased

uid intake, increased salt intake, intravenous re-hydration, removal of heat, rapid reduction of

. ATT%NEYS Al

ore temperature, cardiac monitoring and/or hospitalization, psychological and psychiatric

BN

EORPORAT!

reatment and treatment of other medical conditions. To the contrary, however, the various

efendants, with malice, recklessness and/or deliberate indifference, failed to provide or obtain

FT@IONAL

¢ APRO

are and/or treatment that was needed.

113. The actions and/or omissions of the various Defendants constitute a deliberate

JOHNSON & GIROUX

ndifference to the serious medical needs of the decedent and demonstrate a reckless, willful

HENNEY,

nd/or wanton disregard for the health and safety of the decedent, thereby denying him the

20

FIEGER. FIEGER




ase 2:06-cv-14353-BAF-DAS Document 52  Filed 06/08/2007 Page 21 of 29

#

5148

gonstitutional right to be free from cruel and unusual punlshmentas provided by the Eighth
Amendment to the United States Constitution

114.  As a direct and proximate result of the actions and/or omissions of the various
efendants, Plaintiffs’ decedent suffered great physical pain, discomfort, loss of mental capacity,
umiliation, degradation and suffering, and eventually death.

115.  As adirect and proximate result of the actions and/or omissions of the various

@HIGAN 480752463 :‘TELEPF@E (248) 355-5555

efendants, Timothy Joe Souders died on August 6, 2006.

116. As a direct and proximate result of the acts and/or omissions of the various

* SOUTHFIELD.

efendants, Plaintiffs have sustained and are entitled to compensation for conscious pain and

HOMILE R(@

uffering of the deceased, funeral, burial and economic costs and/or damages, loss of support, loss
f gifts and gratuities, loss of love, society and companionship, and all other damages recognized
y the Michigan Wrongful Death Act.

117. By the aforementioned actions and/or omissions, Defendants have deprived

OUNSELORS AT Leg¥ » 193¢WEST T

NREC

laintiffs’ decedent of the rights secured by the Eighth Amendment to the United States

onstitution, in violation of 42 U.S.C. §1983.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request the following relief:

A. Compensatory non-economic and economic damages in excess of
Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00), including, but not limited
to, all damages recoverable under the United States Constitution and/or
42 U.S.C. §1983 and/or the laws of the State of Michigan, including, but
not limited to, the Michigan Wrongful Death Act;

B. Punitive damages and exemplary damages;
C. Reasonable attorney fees, costs and interest; and
21
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D. Such other and further relief as appears reasonable and just under the
circumstances.

COUNT II

VIOLATION AND BREACH OF CONSENT JUDGMENT CONCERNING
CONDITIONS OF CONFINEMENT AT THE STATE PRISON
OF SOUTHERN MICHIGAN BY THE DEFENDANTS WARDEN
BURT AND DIRECTOR CARUSO

118.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
117 of Plaintiffs’ Complaint as though more fully set forth herein.
119. OnMay 13, 1985, Judge John Feikens, a United States District Court Judge of the

astern District of Michigan, Southern Division, entered an Order concerning a Consent

<9390 W% TEN MILE ROAD ¢ _SOUTHFIELD. MICHIGAN 48075-2463 « TELEPHONE (248) 355-5555 * FAX (248) 355-5148

udgment involving an action brought pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1983 which sought declaratory and

quitable relief with respect to the conditions of confinement at the State Prison of Southern

62\1 SELORGAT LAW

ichigan (Jackson Prison).

120. The plaintiffs to the above-referenced action, presently titled Hadix. et al v.

dTTORNEYS AND C

aruso, et al, 4:92-cv-00110-RAE, consist of plaintiffs who are the class of prisoners that are

gATION

ow or will be confined at Jackson Prison, and the defendants are state officials charged under

2_ CORP

Michigan law with the operation of Jackson Prison.
121. The Court retained jurisdiction to enforce the terms of the Judgment in Hadix.
122.  The Defendant Warden S.L. Burt, as the warden of Jackson Prison, and Defendant

at Caruso the Director of the MDOC are the successors of the state officials charged under

JOHNS%\J & GIROUX + A PROFESSIO|

ichigan law with the operation of Jackson Prison who entered into the Consent Judgment and,

22
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s such, are legally bound by the terms of the Judgment and are required to abide by the terms of

(248) 885-5148

FAX

the Judgment.
123.  The Defendants Warden S.L. Burt and Pat Caruso had a duty to ensure that the

erms of the Consent Judgment were met while the deceased, Timothy Joe Souders, was confined

TELEPH@NE (248) 355-5555

at Jackson Prison.

£

124, The Consent Judgment required the above Defendants and the Defendant State of

lgiHlGAN 48075-246.

ichigan through its Department of Corrections to ensure that medical services consistent with

OWSHFIELD

ontemporary professional healthcare standards be provided.
125.  The Consent Judgment prohibited staff from inhibiting, interfering with or

elaying any aspect of the healthcare system.

126.  The Consent Judgment further required that prisoners be provided with

ATHAW -+ 19390 WEST Tiy MILE ROAD + S

sychological or psychiatric care in a timely fashion.

127.  The Defendants Warden S.L. Burt and Pat Caruso through its Department of

%COUNSELORS

orrections, failed to comply with the Consent Judgment by not ensuring that prisoners, including
imothy Joe Souders, were provided healthcare.

128. As a direct and proximate result of the acts and/or omissions of the various

PORATION « AT'I'Q@‘JEYSA

pj

efendants, Plaintiffs have sustained and are entitled to compensation for conscious pain and

FESSIONAL

uffering of the deceased, funeral, burial and economic costs and/or damages, loss of support, loss
f gifts and gratuities, loss of love, society and companionship, and all other damages recognized

y the Michigan Wrongful Death Act.

FIEGER. FIEGER. KENNEY. JOHNSON @IROUX OAPRO
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request the following relief:

A. Compensatory non-economic and economic damages in excess of
Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00), including, but not limited
to, all damages recoverable under the United States Constitution and/or
42 U.S.C. §1983 and/or the laws of the State of Michigan, including, but
not limited to, the Michigan Wrongful Death Act;

B. Punitive damages and exemplary damages;
C. Reasonable attorney fees, costs and interest; and
D. Such other and further relief as appears reasonable and just under the
circumstances.
COUNT III

THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY CONTRACT

129.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
28 of Plaintiffs’ Complaint as though more fully set forth herein.

130. At all times relevant, the deceased, Timothy Souders, as a prisoner at the State

Bi@ AND COUNSELORS.AT LAW « 19390 WEST TEN MILE ROAD + SOUTHFIELD, MICHIGAN 48075-2463  TELEPHONE (248) 355-5555 + FAX (248) 355-5148

rison of Southern Michigan, was a person for whose benefit the Consent Judgment, presently

~—ATTORN]

itled Hadix, et al. v Caruso, et al., 4:92-cv-00110-RAE (Hadix), was entered into and thus the

@RATION

eceased was a third-party beneficiary of the Consent Judgment.

131. At all times relevant, the Hadix Consent Judgment was intended solely for the
enefit of prisoners at the Southern Michigan Prison of Jackson and hence, the deceased.

132, Pursuant to MCLA 600§ 600.1405 Timothy Souders was intended to benefit

irectly from the Hadix Consent Judgment.

FIEGER. FIEGER. KENNEY, JOHNgON & GIROUX « A RBPFESSIONAL CORP
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%:

133. The Defendants Warden S.L. Burt and Pat Caruso through the Department of

orrections that employed them has violated and breached the Hadix Consent Judgment and

5555 = W {248) 355-5148

therefore, its contract with the deceased.

b,

134.  As a direct and proximate result of the acts and/or omissions of the various

UTELEPHONE (248)

efendants, Plaintiffs have sustained and are entitled to compensation for conscious pain and

g8075-2463

uffering of the deceased, funeral, burial and economic costs and/or damages, loss of support, loss

%f gifts and gratuities, loss of love, society and companionship, and all other damages recognized
@y the Michigan Wrongful Death Act.

% WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request the following relief:

=

g A. Compensatory non-economic and economic damages in excess of
% Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00), including, but not limited
= to, all damages recoverable under the United States Constitution and/or
Z 42 U.S.C. §1983 and/or the laws of the State of Michigan, including, but
; not limited to, the Michigan Wrongful Death Act;

% B. Punitive damages and exemplary damages;

% C. Reasonable attorney fees, costs and interest; and

L_:t D Such other and further relief as appears reasonable and just under the
5 circumstances.

’ COUNT IV

< BATTERY, FALSE IMPRISONMENT, INTENTIONAL

g INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS AND GROSS NEGLIGENCE

© BY INDIVIDUAL DEFENDANTS AND CORRECTIONAL MEDICAL SERVICES

% 135.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
534 of Plaintiffs’ Complaint as though more fully set forth herein.

25
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136. At all times relevant, as a result of the Michigan Constitution and/or Michigan

BAX (248) 355-5148

tatutes and/or Michigan common law and/or the special relationship that existed between the

ecedent and the individual Defendants, they had a duty to provide for the safety of the deceased.
137.  Defendants breached their duty and more, acted with recklessness, willful and

antonness as to whether harm would result by keeping Decedent in a cell which was excessively

<246% TELEPHONE (248)8 5555

ot in temperature without adequate fluids or means of re-hydration and under the influence of

SHCHIGANS807S

armful medications while restrained in an unreasonable manner.

138. Inaddition to the aforementioned actions and/or omission, the various Defendants

@AD * SOUTHFIELD,

cted in an extreme and outrageous manner with reckless disregard as to whether injury would

By MILE R

esult by restraining the deceased which amounted to intentional infliction of emotional distress,

%\VEST Ti

attery and false imprisonment.

« 19

139.  The acts and/or omissions and/or conduct of Defendants as alleged in the above-

tated cause of action also constitutes negligence, gross negligence, battery and intentional

NSEA.ORS AT LAW

MD.COU

nfliction of emotional distress under the laws of the State of Michigan and this Court has pendent

supplemental) jurisdiction to hear and adjudicate said claims.

* ATFORNEYS A

140.  The Defendant CMS as the employer of the Defendant Dr. Paul Fatu, is liable for

GGRPORATION

is negligence, gross negligence, battery, intentional infliction of emotional distress and false

mprisonment on the basis of respondeat superior.

FESSIONAL

141.  The Defendants are not entitled to governmental immunity.

142.  As a direct and proximate result of the acts and/or omissions of the various

HNSON & GIROUX * APRO

efendants, Plaintiffs have sustained and are entitled to compensation for conscious pain and

HENNEY.

uffering of the deceased, funeral, burial and economic costs and/or damages, loss of support, loss

26
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5148

f gifts and gratuities, loss of love, society and companionship, and all other damages recognized

FAX (248) B85

y the Michigan Wrongful Death Act.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request the following relief:

A. Compensatory non-economic and economic damages in excess of
Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00), including, but not limited
to, all damages recoverable under the United States Constitution and/or
42 U.S.C. §1983 and/or the laws of the State of Michigan, including, but
not limited to, the Michigan Wrongful Death Act;

MICHIGAN 48075-2463 + TELEPHONE (248) 355-5555

B. Punitive damages and exemplary damages;
C. Reasonable attorney fees, costs and interest; and
D. Such other and further relief as appears reasonable and just under the
circumstances.
COUNT V

VIOLATION OF MCLA 333.1722

143.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
42 of Plaintiffs’ Complaint as though more fully set forth herein.
144. MCLA 330.1722 prohibits abuse or neglect of a person receiving mental health

ervices.

ARPORATION + ATTQRNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW « 19390 WEST TEN MILE ROAD « SOUTHFIELD,

145.  Atall relevant times the deceased was the recipient of mental health services and
ection 1722 prohibited the individual defendants from abusing him.

146. The conduct of the individual and Correctional Medical Services defendants

JQjNSON & GIROUX /3 PROFESSIONAL

escribed above constitutes abuse and therefore pursuant to Section 1722(3) the Plaintiff has a

KENNEY.

ause of action against the individual defendants for violation of that statute.
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147.  As a direct and proximate result of the acts and/or omissions of the various

@X (248) 355-5148

Defendants, Plaintiffs have sustained and are entitled to compensation for conscious pain and

5-5555

uffering of the deceased, funeral, burial and economic costs and/or damages, loss of support, loss

8) 84!

f gifts and gratuities, loss of love, society and companionship, and all other damages recognized

y the Michigan Wrongful Death Act.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request the following relief:

A. Compensatory non-economic and economic damages in excess of
Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00), including, but not limited
to, all damages recoverable under the United States Constitution and/or
42 U.S.C. §1983 and/or the laws of the State of Michigan, including, but
not limited to, the Michigan Wrongful Death Act;

B. Punitive damages and exemplary damages;
C. Reasonable attorney fees, costs and interest; and
D. Such other and further relief as appears reasonable and just under the
circumstances.
Respectfully submitted,

\s\ Paul W. Broschay
Geoffrey N. Fieger (P30441)

Paul W. Broschay (P36267)
FIEGER, FIEGER, KENNEY, JOHNSON & GIROUX, P.C.

19390 W. Ten Mile Road
Southfield, MI 48075
(248) 355-5555
p.broschay@fiegerlaw.com

INAL CORPORATION + ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW « 19390 WEST TEN MILE ROAD ¢ SOUTHFIELD. MICHIGAN 48075-2463—g+ TELEPREGNE (24

ated: June 8, 2007
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RELIANCE UPON JURY DEMAND

NOW COME Plaintiffs, STEVEN K. SOUDERS and THERESA M. VAUGHN,

Co-Personal Representatives of the ESTATE OF TIMOTHY JOE SOUDERS, Deceased, by and

HONEﬁS) 355-5555 » FAX (248) 355-5148

:ﬁhrough their attorneys, FIEGER, FIEGER, KENNEY, JOHNSON & GIROUX, P.C., and hereby rely

6

ipon the jury demand previously filed in the above-captioned matter.

=

Respectfully submitted,

\s\ Paul W. Broschay
Geoffrey N. Fieger (P30441)

Paul W. Broschay (P36267)
FIEGER, FIEGER, KENNEY, JOHNSON & GIROUX, P.C.

19390 W. Ten Mile Road
Southfield, MI 48075
(248) 355-5555
p.broschay@fiegerlaw.com

ated: June 8, 2007

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

ORNEYS AND COUNSELORS@LAW « 19390 WEST TEN MILE ROAD + SOUTHFIELD, MICHIGAN 480

The undersigned hereby certifies that on June 8, 2007 he electronically filed the foregoing
'with the Clerk of the Court using the CM/ECF system, which will send notification of such filing
1o the following individuals: Ronald W. Chapman, Esq. (www.lawyers.com/chapman); William
?ertes, Esq. (william.vertes@kitch.com); Kevin M. Thom, Esq. (thomk@michigan.gov); and
Mark E. Donnelly, Esq. (donnellym@michigan.gov).

Respectfully submitted,

\s\ Paul W. Broschay
Geoffrey N. Fieger (P30441)

Paul W. Broschay (P36267)
FIEGER, FIEGER, KENNEY, JOHNSON & GIROUX, P.C.

19390 W. Ten Mile Road
Southfield, MI 48075
(248) 355-5555
p.broschay@fiegerlaw.com
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